


Pine Acres History 
In 1958, the Senior Married Couples Class was looking for a sizeable property to use by all church organizations for purposes of recreation, Christian Education, scouts and retreats.  It was during the hunting season that Claude Erby stumbled upon a property in South Lebanon Township.  The property was 20 acres of woodland found to be from the estate of Alice Westenberger.  The property was purchased in January 1959 for the large sum of $6,400.00. 

The original name of the property was “St Mark’s 20” or “the property”.  The Senior Married Couples Class first maintained the responsibility of the property, however, we couldn’t keep calling it “the property”, so a naming contest was held.  On March 21st, 1959,  the property became known as “Pine Acres” through submission from Mrs Richard Becker.

There was much work to be done.  Pine Acres contained a summer house and a garage and much, much woodland.  There were many Saturdays spent in 1959 clearing dead wood to provide parking and bathroom area.  Official dedication was held May 17th, 1959 before more than 450 members of the congregation.  

The first day camp was held August 1959.  That program continued for 4 years before being discontinued.  The first camp had 75 youngsters.  Camp was run by all women as they were the ones that were home during the day.

As the early 1960s began, it was noted development slowed due to lack of funds as well as there were a large number of men getting poison ivy.  By the late 1960s, the building program began to explode.  The pavilion was built and a well was drilled to finally have running water at Pine Acres.
In 1963, Penn Dot wanted to build a new highway and were ready to purchase some land from us.  2.6 acres was purchased by the state at a cost of $1,948.  The new highway required us to move our entrance to it’s current location.  

The first women’s retreat was held on September 16th, 1967.  Then there is a lull in writings.  By 1972, it was being discussed to turn Pine Acres over to the church.  Finally, in October 1978, a letter of revocation was written to give the property back to the church of St Mark’s.

The first Pine Acres committee of the church was formed in 1979.  By the early 1980s, fund raisers were held to help provide income for Pine Acres to help take the financial responsibility off the church.  Regular work days had also begun to be held.  Pine Acres was beginning to look great, but for whom.  There was no church activity occurring.  The picnics were being held elsewhere and many of the church groups had stopped using it.  

During the 1986-1989 timeframe, multiple vandalisms occurred.  There was a challenge by Pastor Shultz to have groups utilize Pine Acres by calling it “Sunday in the Park” program.  But no groups bit.  

On August 10, 1989, the Consistory seriously discussed the desire to sell Pine Acres.  However, there was low attendance at that meeting, so the vote was deferred.  That was the last discussion of selling.  

1990 was a year of change.  The Men’s Thursday work crew program really took off.  There were many workdays to upgrade the bathrooms to their current state.  The first John Deere riding mower was purchased.  In 1991, Day camp, or the current Kid’s Kamp, program was revitalized.  In August, 1991, the church picnic came back to Pine Acres.  What a day, over 250+ back on church grounds.  

In 1992, the first of two major playground additions was built.  By 1995, we determined we needed something besides swings, so the turbo slide came.  The macadam walkway that we enjoy today was installed in 1995 for a modest figure of $900.

The weather in 1993 and 1996 took a pretty heavy toll on Pine Acres.  In 1993, we had a Nor Easter that took out 21 trees.  The trees snapped onto buildings, shrubs, roofs, whatever it could find.  In a matter of two weekends, the 20+ people had the area cleaned up and ready for a huge bon fire.  It was good fire department training.   1996 we had multiple major snow storms.  Roofs in town started to fail.  We had 3 feet on the pavilion roof and the weight was a problem, so the roof was shoveled off.  By the time they were done, they could walk off the roof right onto the snow piles.  That summer, reinforcement poles were added to support additional weight.  The boxwood hedge was also wiped out, so it was removed and replaced with what we see today.

The external interest in Pine Acres continued to grow.  More and more groups wanted to stay overnight.  By June 1997, the committee was questioning it’s mission statement.  What was the purpose?  “To provide church organizations a sizeable property for purposes of recreation, Christian Education, scouts and retreats”.  What was missing was a cabin for overnight retreats.  So in July 1997, work was begun on the largest task undertaken since the early years of Pine Acres.  Drawings were prepared and permits gathered.  By Feb 1998, we were ready to start clearing the area.  A subcontractor was hired for the footer and concrete.  But then it was 27 persons from the congregation who framed the building, put the roof trusses in place, shingled the roof, did the electrical work and whatever else.  The cabin was ready for ribbon cutting and dedication by picnic day 1998.  

In 1999, hot water was added to the bathrooms and kitchen.  Finally we could do dishes in hot water.  By 2002, we were experiencing a problem with mosquitoes and everything that goes with not taking care of standing water.  The pond was refurbished and we obtained our permit to own grass eating carp.  Now the pond has become an educational area for many groups.

The most recent structure added to Pine Acres was the Pole Barn.  Through the growth of having multiple riding mowers, a Kubota tractor for heavy moving and two golf carts to help get around the area quickly, the original garage was busting at it’s seems.  Now we have a place to keep all the vehicles under cover providing them longevity.  

August 23rd, 2009 we celebrated the 50th anniversary of Pine Acres.   The day was one to celebrate and one that we were blessed with absolutely beautiful weather.  We also dedicated 32 dogwood trees planted in memory of family members to celebrate the occasion. 
In 2011 and 2012, we added ceiling fans to the long pavilion area to help in those dog days of summer.  In 2013, we were blessed with a donation of a backyard wooden playset to add to our play area.   This playset added to our number of swings, but also gave us rock climbing, jungle gym items to climb around.  As we continued to expand what was available at Pine Acres, we realized it was time to get rid of those old electric boxes and have the electric upgraded to a 200 amp system.  This now gives us the possibility of running on generator when the electric has been knocked out until things can get up and running.
In 2016, we made the decision to dig out the original volleyball court and put wood chips down.  The court was getting filled with rocks and roots, just an unsafe place to play.  During Kid’s Kamp 2017, we learned what lived in our pond through our Science study.  What better way to teach kids what a snail or mussel looks like along with catfish and the like.  They got to touch the snails/mussels and put them into the pond.  Pine Acres at it’s best, teaching kids about nature.
